IN THE UNI TED STATES COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE FI FTH Cl RCU T

No. 00-50551
Summary Cal endar

UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA,
Pl ai ntiff-Appellee,
vVer sus

FERNANDO FRAUSTO- DURAN,
Def endant - Appel | ant.

Appeal fromthe United States District Court
For the Western District of Texas
USDC No. EP-99-CR-185-2-H

April 4, 2001
Bef ore H G3 NBOTHAM W ENER, and BARKSDALE, Circuit Judges.
PER CURI AM *

Fer nando Fraust o-Duran (Frausto) was convicted of aiding and
abetting the illegal inportation of marijuana, in violation of 21
U S.C 88 952 and 960, and 18 U.S.C. § 2. He contends that the
evidence was insufficient to support his conviction, arguing that
the district court erred in denying his notion for judgnent of
acquittal. W are unpersuaded and now affirm

"The standard of reviewfor sufficiency of evidence i s whet her

any reasonable trier of fact could have found that the evidence

"Pursuant to 5TH QR R 47.5, the court has determnm ned that
this opinion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.



establ i shed guilt beyond a reasonable doubt."! "In evaluating the
sufficiency of the evidence, we consider the evidence in the |ight
nmost favorable to the governnent with all reasonabl e i nferences and
credibility choices made in support of the verdict."?2

Frausto contends that the evidence is insufficient to
establish that he aided and abetted his son, Gegorio, and their
co-conspirator in the comm ssion of the offense. To establish guilt
as an aider and abettor under 18 U S. C. § 2, the governnent nust
prove that the defendant: "(1) associated with a crim nal venture,
(2) participated in the venture, and (3) sought by action to nake
the venture successful."® He argues that the evidence was
insufficient to support a reasonable inference that he knew that
mar i j uana was conceal ed in the canper of the truck in which he was
a passenger.* However, Frausto testified at trial that he knew the

marijuana was in the canper. Although he subsequently attenpted to

' United States v. Martinez, 975 F.2d 159, 160-61 (5th Cr.
1992) .

2 United States v. lvy, 973 F.2d 1184, 1188 (5th G r. 1992).
3 United States v. Fierro, 38 F.3d 761, 768 (5th Cir. 1994).

4 See 21 U S.C. 8§ 960(a) (2001) (penalizing the know ng and
intentional inportation of a controlled substance); United States
v. Valencia, 907 F.2d 671, 680 (7th Gr. 1990) ("The state of m nd
required for conviction as an aider and abettor is the sane state
of mnd as required for the principal offense.”); United States v.
Otiz-Loya, 777 F.2d 973, 980 (5th Cr. 1985) (stating that, for
pur poses of an aiding and abetting offense, "[a]ssociation neans
that the defendant shared in the crimnal intent of the
principal.").



retract this statenment, a jury was entitled to credit this and
ot her governnent evidence tending to prove that Frausto possessed
the requisite guilty know edge.®

The jury could al so have reasonably concluded that Frausto
"participated" in the crimnal venture. A jury could have found
that Frausto told the custons i nspector that the truck belonged to
him Moreover, Frausto testified that G egario told him "You | ook
ol der, and you're a grown man, and, so, the inspectors aren't going
to think that you are in a |loaded truck." Frausto al so had worked
as a guard at ports of entry in the El Paso area; in fact, one of
t he supervisors recognized himon the day he was arrested. It is
therefore a fair inference that Frausto, Gegario, and their co-
conspirator expected that Frausto's presence in the truck, in
addition to his statenent that the truck belonged to him would
reduce the |ikelihood of a thorough i nspection. As the evidence was
accordingly sufficient to support Frausto's conviction, we AFFI RM
the district court's denial of his notion for judgnent of
acquittal.

AFFI RVED.

> See United States v. Merida, 765 F.2d 1205, 1220 (5th Cir.
1985) ("[A] jury may choose to believe part of what a witness says
W thout believing all of that witness's testinony.").
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